ORNLMIT216

| Олк | RIDGE | NATIONAL LABORATORY |
|-----|-------------------------|---------------------|
| | UNION | CARRIDE COMPORATION |
| | | AUCLERY DIVISION |
| | | |
| | R.59 777 15 804 1 19817 | |
| | | |

| ORNL/MIT-216 | > |
|--------------|---|

DATE: September 29, 1975

COPY NO.

SUBJECT: Cocurrent Three-Phase Fluidized Bed, Part 3

AUTHOR: S. Khosrowshahi, S.R. Bloxom, C. Guzman, and R.N. Schlapfer

Consultants: J.S. Watson and J.M. Begovich

ABSTRACT

The basic hydrodynamic variables of minimum fluidization and phase holdups were experimentally determined in a three-phase fluidized bed. Packings of 4x8 and 8x12 mesh alumina and 0.25-in. Plexiglas were fluidized by a cocurrent flow of air and water in 3- and 6-in.-diam Plexiglas columns. The holdups and minimum fluidization velocities were calculated from a pressure profile of the column. Correlations for the solid holdup as a function of the phase properties and operating parameters are presented.

> This report we prepared as an account of work possicily by the United States Government Netwice the United States not rise Cristel States Every Retarch public Control Auromitication, air any of the a employeet, for any of these united states subconstations, or they employeet nutries any varray, express or impled, or states will habitity or automobility to the exercise, complement or watefunces I any information, appartue, produce or spaces automation, appartue, produce or statego public and any rights.

Oak Ridge Station School of Chemical Engineering Practice Massachusetts Institute of Technology

Contents

| Ρ | aye |
|---|-----|
| - | - |

.

۷

•

×

| 1. | Summary | 4 |
|----|--|----|
| 2. | Introduction | 4 |
| | 2.1 Background | 4 |
| | 2.2 Theory | 4 |
| | 2.3 Previous Work | 5 |
| | 2.4 Objectives | 7 |
| | 2.5 Nethod of Attack | 7 |
| 3. | Apparatus and Procedure | 8 |
| | 3.1 Apparatus | 8 |
| | 3.2 Procedure | 8 |
| 4. | Results and Discussion of Results | 10 |
| | 4.1 Pressure Drop | 10 |
| | 4.2 Minimum Gas and Liquid Fluidization Velocities | 10 |
| | 4.3 Holdups | 16 |
| | 4.3.1 Holdups with Alumina Packing | 16 |
| | 4.3.2 Holdups with Plexiglas Packing | 21 |
| | 4.4 Correlations | 21 |
| | 4.4.1 Solid Holdup | 21 |
| | 4.4.2 Liquid Holdup | 23 |
| | 4.4.3 Gas Holdup | 27 |
| 5, | Conclusions | 27 |
| 6. | Recommendations | 29 |
| 7. | Acknowledgment | 29 |
| 8, | Appendix | 30 |
| | 8.1 Derivation of Holdup Formulas | 30 |
| | 8.2 Sample Calculations | 33 |
| | 8.3 Location of Original Data | 34 |
| | 8.4 Nomenclature | 34 |
| | 8.5 Literature References | 36 |

•

1

1. SUMMARY

Applications of three-phase fluidized beds such as catalytic hydrogenation, coal liquefaction, and biochemical conversion require a better understanding of the design and operating characteristics of these contactors. A study was undertaken to correlate the hydrodynamic parameters important to the design of these beds.

The experimental apparatus consisted of two columns of 3- and 6-in.-ID, 0.25-in., spherical, Plexiglas beads, and 4x8 and 8x12 mesh alumina beads were fluidized with gas and liquid in the two columns. Pressure drop was measured for different flow rates, and the corresponding holdups were calculated from the equations defining the system. Incipient fluidization was determined from a plot of pressure drop as a function of liquid velocity at the point where the pressure drop becomes independent of liquid velocity. Correlations for the three holdups were attempted. The following equations were obtained for solid holdup:

 $1 - \varepsilon_{S} = 0.596 \ Ca_{G}^{-0.0059 \pm 0.0042} \ Fr_{L}^{0.069 \pm 0.006}$ $1 - \varepsilon_{S} = 1.17 \ Re_{L}^{0.231 \pm 0.009} \ Ar_{L}^{-0.157 \pm 0.005}$

Liquid and gas holdups could not be correlated.

2. INTRODUCTION

2.1 Background

A three-phase fluidized bed is a bed of solid particles suspended by an upward cocurrent flow of gas and liquid. The principal application of these contactors is as catalytic reactors involving gas and liquid reactants and a solid catalyst. This application includes the hydrogenation of liquid petroleum fractions, the hydrogenation of unsaturated fats, and Fisher-Tropsch type processes. In coal liquefaction processes currently under development, the solid phase of the fluidized bed contains both a catalyst and a solid reactant. Knowledge of the flow behavior in a three-phase fluidized bed is essential to the analysis and design of such industrial operations.

2.2 Theory

When a fluid is passed upward through a bed of solid particles, pressure drop occurs. This pressure increases linearly with distance

through the bed of solids. The total pressure drop across the bed increases linearly with the fluid flow rates. At the minimum fluidization velocity the drag force exerted on the particles by the fluid exactly counterbalances the buoyant weight of solids. There is no further increase in pressure drop across the bed at velocities above minimum fluidization.

2.3 Previous Work

Kim et al. (6) studied the characteristics of two- and three-phase fluidized beds. Three-phase systems of water, air, and solids (gravel and glass) ranging in size from 3 to 6 mm were studied varying the superficial liquid velocity from 1.4 to 10.2 cm/sec and the superficial gas velocity from 0 to 26 cm/sec in a two-dimensional column (243.8 x 66 x 2.5 cm). The expanded bed height was measured and solid holdup was obtained from the bed height with Eq. (1). The gas and liquid holdups (sg and s_L) were determined by simultaneous solution of Eqs. (2) and (3).

$$s_{\rm S} = M/\rho_{\rm S} A H_{\rm B} \tag{1}$$

$$\varepsilon_L + \varepsilon_G + \varepsilon_S = 1.0 \tag{2}$$

$$\Delta P = (e_{L}\rho_{L} + e_{G}\rho_{G} + e_{S}\rho_{S})gH_{R}$$
(3)

Kim also measured photographically the bubble diameter and velocity and reports two forms of three-phase fluidization: bed contraction on introduction of gas and bed expansion on introduction of gas. These two forms depend on a critical particle size, above which only bed expansion is observed. Kim found that for particles with densities of 2.5 gm/cm³, fluidized by air and water, the critical diameter is 2.5 mm. In an extension of this investigation, Kim <u>et al.</u> (6) employed the same gas and solid phases but varied the viscosity from 1 to 70 cp with sugar and carbexymethyl cellulose solutions and varied the surface tension from 40 to 73 dynes/cm with acetone. Kim also performed experiments with 1-mm glass beads in the two-dimensional column varying superficial liquid velocity from 2.7 to 10.2 cm/sec and superficial gas velocity from 0.70 to 16.1 cm/sec. He obtained three correlations for three phase fluidized beds. For beds which initially expand on introduction of gas:

$$\epsilon_{\rm L} + \epsilon_{\rm G} = 1.4({\rm Fr}_{\rm L})^{0.170} ({\rm Ca}_{\rm G})^{0.078}$$
 (4)

For beds which initially contract on introduction of gas:

$$\varepsilon_{L} + \varepsilon_{G} = 1.301(Fr_{L})^{0.128}(Ca_{G})^{0.073} e^{0.031(V_{L}/V_{G})\varepsilon_{L_{2}}}$$
 (5)

where el, is liquid holdup from a two-phase (liquid-solid) fluidized bed given by:

$$\epsilon_{L_2} = 1.353 (Fr_L)^{0.206} (Re_L)^{-0.10}$$
 (6)

For liquid holdup, Kim et al. proposed

$$\varepsilon_{\rm L} = 1.504({\rm Fr}_{\rm L})^{0.234} ({\rm Fr}_{\rm G})^{-0.086} ({\rm Re}_{\rm L})^{-0.082} ({\rm Ca}_{\rm G})^{0.092}$$
 (7)

Dakshinamurty <u>et al</u>. (2) studied the fluidization characteristics of air-water-solids and air-kerosene-solids systems in a column 6-cm in diameter and 150-cm high varying the superficial gas velocity from 0.1 to 7.5 cm/sec and the superficial liquid velocity from 1 to 20 cm/sec. Several solids including rockwool shot, glass spheres, glass beads, iron shot, and sand ranging in density and diameter from 2.4 to 7.7 gm/cm³ and from 0.1 to 0.7 cm, respectively, were fluidized. They reported a correlation for bed porcsity in terms of the terminal velocity:

For Ret =
$$\frac{\rho_L U_t p_p}{\mu_L} > 500$$
,
 $\varepsilon_L + \varepsilon_G = 2.65 (\frac{U_L}{U_+})^{0.6} (\frac{\mu_L U_G}{\sigma})^{0.08}$
(8)

For $Re_t < 500$,

$$\varepsilon_{L} + \varepsilon_{G} = 2.2 \left(\frac{U_{L}}{U_{t}} \right)^{0.41} \left(\frac{\mu_{L} U_{G}}{\sigma} \right)^{0.08}$$
(9)

Østergaard and Michelsen (2) investigated the effect of gas and liquid velocities and particle size on gas holdup using a tracer technique. The experiments were carried out with water, air, and glass ballotini. The fluidization column of borosilicate tubing was 21.6-cm ID and 4.7 m long; the total height of the experimental section was 4.4 m. Flow rates of gas and liquid were measured by calibrated rotameters. The tracer materials were radioactive gamma-ray emitting isotopes: bromine-82 in the liquid phase (in the form of aqueous ammonium bromide solution) and argon-41 in the gas phase. Østergaard obtained a correlation for the gas holdup as a function of the superficial gas and liquid velocities:

$$\epsilon_{\rm G} = (2.50 \pm 0.05) \times 10^{-2} (0.193 \, \rm{U_L})^{-0.16 \pm 0.02} (1.2 \, \rm{U_G})^{1.95 \pm 0.03}$$
 (10)

б

Burck et al. (1) performed experiments in a 3-in.-10 column varying gas and liquid superficial velocities. Burck studied three packings: 4xB alumina, 8x12 alumina, and 0.25-in. Plexiglas beads and developed a correlation for solid holdup in terms of the minimum fluidization velocity.

$$\varepsilon_{\rm S} = 0.51 \left(\frac{U_{\rm L}}{U_{\rm Lmin}} \right)^{-0.076 \pm 0.02}$$
 (11)

Wen and Yu (8) studied liquid-solid fluidized beds of glass and steel balls, varying diameter from 0.08 to 0.25 cm and density from 2.36 to 7.84 gm/cm³. Wen correlated his data with a large amount of literature data and obtained a correlation for bed porosity.

$$\operatorname{Ar}_{L} e_{L}^{4.7} \approx 18 \operatorname{Re}_{L}^{1.687} + 2.7 \operatorname{Re}_{L}^{1.687}$$
 (12)

Ferguson et al. (4) performed experiments in 6-in.-ID and 3-in.-ID bubble columns varying gas and liquid superficial velocities. Ferguson obtained a correlation for gas holdup

$$\varepsilon_{\rm G} = 0.322 \left(\frac{\rho_{\rm L} U_{\rm G}^{\rm A}}{g\sigma}\right)^{0.219}$$
 (13)

2.4 Objectives

The objectives were to correlate the hydrodynamic variables of minimum fluidization velocities and phase holdups in a three phase fluidized bed over a range of operating conditions, and to recommend improvement in the experimental apparatus and to make suggestions for the continuation of this investigation.

2.5 Method of Attack

The hydrodynamic variables affecting the operation of three-phase fluidized beds were studied in two Plexiglas columns of 3- and 6-in. diameters. The pressure drop across the bed was monitored at a range of fluid velocities to determine the minimum fluidization velocities. The phase holdups were calculated from the bed height and pressure drop across the bed. For operating conditions where there is a well-defined bed height, the solid holdup was calculated from Eq. (1). The liquid and gas holdups were determined by the simultaneous solution of $t_{\rm QS}$. (2) and (3). For flow rates where a definite bed height could not be determined, photographs were taken in an attempt to calculate the solid holdups. To develop reasonable correlations for the solid, liquid, and gas holdups in the limit, the following criteria were established: (1) the correlation should approach known two-phase correlations as one of the phases vanishes, and (2) the sum of the holdups has to be unity. From previous investigations, the variables which were considered for correlating the phase holdups are:

$$\rho_{S}, \rho_{I}, \rho_{G}, U_{L}, U_{G}, u_{L}, \sigma, g, 0_{p}$$

The dimensionless groups that were formed are consistent with those of previous investigators and are:

With these holdup criteria in mind and the above dimensionless groups, several correlations were attempted using a multivariable linear regression technique. The correlations were based on 105 experimental data points and 721 data points from the literature (2, 3, 5, 6, 7).

3. APPARATUS AND PROCEDURE

3.1 Apparatus

A flowsheet of the experimental apparatus is shown in Fig. 1. Threephase fluidized beds were operated in two Plexiglas columns of 3- and 6-in.-ID. Water is pumped from two 55-gal feed tanks through a series of rotameters to the bottom of one of the columns where a screen acts as a liquid distributor. Similarly, air from an air line flows through a series of gas rotameters to a gas distributor located directly above the liquid distributor screen. The air and water flow cocurrently upwards through the column. The exit air is vented to atmosphere and the water overflows and is recirculated to the feed tanks. A series of water-filled manumeters are located at intervals along both columns.

3.2 Procedure

Three packings were fluidized in the two columns: 4x8 and 8x12 mesh alumina beads and 0.25-in.-diam Plexiglas spheres. The alumina beads were pretreated with water to allow for adsorption in the porous material. The alumina was drained and sorted to eliminate broken particles. All packings were weighed, the densities determined by water displacement, and an average particle diameter determined by measurement with a micrometer. Initial



.

ŵ

.

.

readings of the manometers were taken, and the readings adjusted relative to the bottom manometer by the addition of a correction factor. This procedure corrects for elevation differences in the position of the manometer scales.

Gas was metered into the column at a specified superficial gas velocity. The liquid superficial velocity was varied over the range from 0 to 23 cm/sec. The pressure profile along the column was determined at each liquid velocity from the series of water manometers. The pressure drop due to flow was measured as the difference between the bottom manometer reading and each corrected manometer reading. The bed height occupied by solid particles and pressure drop across the bed were determined by a plot of pressure drop against distance up the column as shown in Fig. 2. Under some operating conditions, the points on this plot showed curvature near the maximum; in these cases a curve was fitted to the points around the maximum, and the bed height and pressure drop were taken at the apex of the curve. The values of pressure drop and bed height were substituted into Eqs. (1), (2), and (3) to calculate the phase holdups. A series of such measurements was made at several different liquid flow rates. The minimum fluidization velocity was determined by a plot of the pressure drop across the bed against the liquid superficial velocity. A typical minimum fluidization curve is shown in Fig. 3.

A photographic technique for the determination of solid holdup in regions of indefinite bed height was examined. Polaroid pictures of a Plexiglas packing consisting of a known ratio of black to clear particles were taken at intervals up the column. Equations (2) and (3) can then be applied over small intervals for the determination of holdups.

4. RESULTS AND DISCUSSION OF RESULTS

4.] Pressure Drop

The reduced pressure drop through the bed as a function of superficial liquid velocity is shown in Fig. 4 for three superficial gas velocities with 8x12 mesh alumina in the 3-in. column. All pressure drop measurements were subject to ± 2 mm error in reading the manometer. The pressure drop increases with increasing liquid velocities below minimum fluidization. The minimum fluidization velocities were determined as the points at which the pressure drops became independent of further increases in liquid velocities. At these points the beds are said to be fluidized. With increasing gas superficial velocities the fluidization points occurred at lower superficial liquid velocities and reduced pressure drops.

4.2 Minimum Gas and Liquid Fluidization Velocities

The minimum gas and liquid superficial velocities as a function of packing and column diameter are illustrated in Figs. 5 and 6. The weak



ij









٠

-



Sec.

×

-

,

*

dependence of minimum liquid velocities on the large range (0 - 20 cm/sec) of minimum gas velocities for the 8x12 mesh alumina in the 3-in. column is shown in Fig. 5. Attrition losses of the 8x12 mesh alumina occurred especially at high superficial gas velocities. Initially 1894 gm of 8x12 mesh alumina having a mean particle diameter of 0.210 cm were charged to the 3-in. column. During experimentation with this packing, a decrease in static bed height equivalent to a loss of 485 gm of alumina occurred. Particle attrition was noticed by the presence of several hundred grams of solid alumina settled in the liquid storage tanks. The solid bed height for all these experiments with 9x12 mesh alumina were corrected. Since the static bed height was recorded before each run, the change in bed mass was back-calculated by Eq. (14) assuming a constant and independently measured static solid holdup.

$$M = \varepsilon_{SPS}^* AH_B^*$$

(14)

where * means static conditions.

The decrease in particle diameter was calculated from the calculated bed mass, M, assuming equal attrition of each particle. The calculated mass and particle diameter were then assumed to be constant throughout the run. The calculated particle diameter of the 8x12 mesh alumina removed from the 3-in, column after the last run was 0.191 cm, compared to a measured mean diameter of 0.189 cm. The three gas velocities in the range of 0.55 to 2.7 cm/sec were studied after the most severe attrition had occurred. The particles were smaller by this time and fluidized at lower liquid velocities as is observed in Fig. 5.

A more pronounced dependence of minimum liquid velocities on gas velocities for Plexiglas and 4x8 mesh alumina in the 6-in, column is shown in Fig. 6. Fluidization occurs at lower gas and liquid velocities for the Plexiglas because of its low density difference with water relative to alumina. The insensitivity of minimum liquid fluidization velocities to large gas velocities for 4x8 mesh alumina in the 3-in, column may be due to the transition into a slugging regime. The possibility of slugging in the 3-in, column exists because of large superficial fluid velocities.

4.3 Holdups

4.3.1 Holdups with Alumina Packing

The effects of liquid and gas superficial velocities on solid, liquid, and gas holdups for 8x12 and 4x8 mesh alumina are shown in Figs. 7 through 10. Due to the increase in bed height, the solid holdup decreases with increasing liquid velocities at a constant gas velocity. As the liquid velocity increases, the liquid holdup increases faster than the solid holdup decreases. Since the sum of the holdups must equal one, the result is that the gas holdup decreases slightly with increasing liquid velocities.



*

٤ľ



18

. .



*

*

9

**

*



¥ -

.

.

The increase of gas superficial velocity lowers the liquid holdup without an apparent change in the solid holdup.

4.3.2 Holdups with Plexiglas Packing

The solid phase holdup is determined by the application of Eq. (1) assuming the existence of a well-defined bed in which the solid holdup is constant. As the fluid velocities are increased, entrainment of solid particles becomes significant and the holdups vary as a function of axial position in the column. Under these circumstances Eqs. (1) and (3) are no longer applicable. The effect of liquid superficial velocity on the holdups for 0.25-in.-diam Plexiglas is shown in Fig. 11. As liquid velocity increases, the calculated solid and gas holdups increase and the calculated liquid holdup decreases. This is contrary to experimental observation since the bed is visually observed to expand significantly due to the entrainment of the low density Plexiglas spheres at these superficial liquid velocities. The height determined by the intersection of the AP-H curves is the bod height of the non-entrained particles. This calculated height decreases with increasing liquid velocity as more particles become entrained above the bed. Equation (1) cannot be applied to solve for the solid holdup when this entrainment occurs. Another method of determining the solid holdup as a function of position in the column was attempted. Plexiglas packing in the ratio of one black to nine clear particles was fluidized at entrainment velocities. Several photographs were taken in an attempt to count the particles as a function of distance up the column. Visual counting was possible in the low particle density region. Unfortunately the number counted for different photographs of the same region at the same conditions. varied by more than a factor of two. The number of photographs taken was not sufficient to provide a good statistical average particle density for each region. To enable a statistically valid count in the low particle density regions, the best packing ratio of black to clear Plexiglas beads has to be determined. Once the number of particles in the low density region is known, the particle count in the high density region may be obtained by difference.

4.4 Correlations

4.4.1 Solid Holdup

The colld holdups were correlated by a multivariable linear regression program choosing the same dimensionless groups as Eq. (4). Equation (15) correlates the experimental data and Eq. (16) correlates the experimental and literature data.

$$1 - r_{\rm S} = 0.636 \ {\rm Ca}_{\rm G}^{-0.010} \ {\rm Fr}_{\rm L}^{0.307}$$
 (15)

where the regression coefficient is 0.87.



.

.

٠

22

H.

.

$$1 - \epsilon_{\rm S} = 0.596 \ {\rm Ca}_{\rm G}^{-0.0059 \pm 0.0042} \ {\rm Fr}_{\rm L}^{0.069 \pm 0.006}$$
 (16)

where the regression coefficient is 0.44. The exponents for Eq. (15) are not in agreement with those of Eq. (4). The deviation can be seen in Fig. 12 where the experimental values for solid holdup are plotted against the values of solid holdup calculated by Eq. (4). The experimental data consistently fall below the calculated values. A possible explanation is that Eq. (4) is only valid when no bed contraction is observed. The discrepancy between the correlations result from correlating data for both expanding and contracting beds in a single equation [Eq. (16)]. Equations (4), (15), and (16) are not valid for the two phase solid-liquid fluidization where all predict a solid holdup of unity. In Fig. 13 the experimental values of solid holdup are plotted against holdups calculated from Eq. (16).

Equation (4) was altered by replacing the capillary and Froude numbers by the Reynolds and Archimedes numbers for liquid. A much better correlation was obtained for all data points:

$$1 - \varepsilon_{\rm S} = 1.17 \ {\rm Re}_{\rm L}^{0.231\pm0.009} \ {\rm Ar}_{\rm L}^{-0.157\pm0.005}$$
 (17)

where the regression coefficient is 0.82. Figure 14 shows the experimental data plotted against the calculated holdup from Eq. (17). The data are scattered more evenly about the diagonal indicating a better correlation than previous ones.

The form of Eq. (4) was modified so that the correlation would approach the known limiting value of bed porosity from Eq. (12) as gas velocity approached zero:

$$1 - e_{S} = \left[\frac{18 \text{ Re}_{L} + 2.7 \text{ Re}_{L}^{1.687}}{\text{Av}_{L}} - \frac{1.687}{2} + aCa_{G}^{b} \text{ Fr}_{L}^{c} \right]$$
(18)

Attempts to calculate the coefficients for this correlation failed since when the first term on the right hand side of Eq. (18) is transferred to the left side, the result is a negative number for a portion of the data. As the legarithm of negative numbers is not defined, the multivariable linear regression technique could not be employed to determine the constants a, b, and c.

4.4.2 Liquid Holdup

.

The liquid holdup was correlated with an equation in the form of Eq. (7). The resulting exponents were not in agreement with the correlation exponents presented by Kim; very small statistical T values were obtained



s



ć





for each of the correlated variables. A comparison of the experimental liquid holdups and holdups calculated by Eq. (7) is shown in Fig. 15. The experimental liquid holdups fall above and below the calculated holdups crossing the diagonal.

A second correlation of the form:

$$\varepsilon_{L} = \frac{18 \text{ Re}_{L} + 2.7 \text{ Re}_{L}^{1.687}}{\text{Ar}_{L}} + aCa_{G}^{b} \text{Fr}_{L}^{C} \text{Fr}_{G}^{d} \text{Re}_{L}^{e}$$
(19)

.

was attempted. As in the previous correlation, the statistical T values for the exponents were very small and a significant correlation was not obtained.

4.4.3 Gas Holdup

,

A correlation for gas holdup of the form

$$c_{\rm G} = 0.322 \left[\frac{c_{\rm L} U_{\rm G}^4}{g\sigma} \right] \stackrel{(0.219)}{\pm} a Ca_{\rm G}^b \, Fr_{\rm L}^c \, F_{\rm G}^d \, Re_{\rm L}^e$$
(20)

was attempted. As in the case of solid holdup, the transfer of the first term on the right side of Eq. (20) to the left side often yields negative numbers and therefore the multivariable linear regression technique could not be applied.

5. CONCLUSIONS

1. The following correlations were obtained for the solid holdup using all the data available:

 $1 - \varepsilon_{\rm S} = 0.596 \ {\rm Ca}_{\rm G}^{-0.0059 \pm 0.0042} \ {\rm Fr}_{\rm L}^{0.069 \pm 0.006}$ $1 - \varepsilon_{\rm S} = 1.17 \ {\rm Re}_{\rm L}^{0.231 \pm 0.009} \ {\rm Ar}_{\rm L}^{-0.157 \pm 0.005}$

2. Solid holdup can be measured by the pressure drop technique only if there exists a definite bed height.

3. As previously reported, the three-phase minimum liquid fluidization velocity decreases with increasing gas velocity over the range studied.



The solid holdup decreases as the liquid velocity is increased. The gas holdup decreases as the liquid velocity is increased.

4. Attrition of 8x12 mesh alumina particles in a three-phase fluidized bed is significant at high gas flow rates.

6. RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Bevelop photographic technique to measure c_S in the region of undefined bed height by determining the number of pictures necessary for a statistical time average in the region, the optimum black-to-clear bead ratio, and the maximum allowable column diameter.

2. Improve accuracy of the pressure drop measurement along the column by decreasing the diameter of the column-to-manometer connecting lines to dampen oscillations at high gas velocities and to prevent the small alumina from clogging the lines. A continuous pressure profile could be obtained using a single moveable J-shaped manometer inside the column, small enough not to disrupt the flow pattern.

3. Increase the operating ranges of the system by using larger pumps, removing the gas regulator, increasing the column height, and increasing the size of the syphon breaker tube for faster overflow in the 3-in. column.

4. Use smaller, more abrasion resistant and constant diameter packing such as glass marbles, plastics, or bail bearings.

7. ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The authors wish to thank J.M. Begovich and J.S. Watson for their help during the project.

8. APPENDIX

8.1 Derivation of Holdup Formulas

The holdup of any particular phase is defined as the volume fraction of that phase in the bed. This definition is written for the general case as

$$\varepsilon_{i} = V_{i}/V_{B} \tag{21}$$

For the solids holdup, the volume of solids may be written as

$$V_{\rm S} = M_{\rm S}/\rho_{\rm S} \tag{22}$$

The volume of the bed may be written as

.

$$V_{\rm B} = AH_{\rm B}$$
(23)

Substituting Eqs. (22) and (23) into Eq. (21) yields

$$\varepsilon_{\rm S} = \frac{M}{\rho_{\rm S} A H_{\rm B}} \tag{1}$$

In Eq. (1) the mass and density of solids and the column area are known, and the bed height is determined by the pressure profile in the column as shown in Fig. 2.

The equations for the liquid and gas holdups are derived from the bed height and pressure drop across the bed. The pressure drop across any segment of the column is equal to the total weight of the material in that segment. The pressure drop may be represented by

 $\Delta P = \rho_B g H_B$ (24)

where the density is the weighted density of the material in the segment. This weighted density may be written in terms of the holdups:

$$\rho_{\rm B} = \varepsilon_{\rm S} \rho_{\rm S} + \varepsilon_{\rm L} \rho_{\rm L} + \varepsilon_{\rm G} \rho_{\rm G} \tag{25}$$

This equation may be substituted into Eq. (24) to yield

$$\Delta P = (\varepsilon_{S} \rho_{S} + \varepsilon_{L} \rho_{L} + \varepsilon_{G} \rho_{G}) g H_{B}$$
(3)

The sum of the holdups must equal one

$$1 = \varepsilon_{S} + \varepsilon_{G} + \varepsilon_{L}$$
 (2)

Equations (2) and (3) are solved simultaneously to yield

$$\varepsilon_{G} = \frac{\frac{\Delta P}{gH_{B}} - \varepsilon_{S}\rho_{S} - \rho_{L} + \varepsilon_{S}\rho_{L}}{\rho_{G} - \rho_{L}}$$
(25)

and

$$\varepsilon_{L} = 1 - \varepsilon_{S} - \varepsilon_{G}$$
(27)

The pressure drop in the above formulas was measured by the water manometers located along the column. As shown in Fig. 16, the pressure at the top of the bed was measured by

$$P_{\rm B} - P_{\rm atm} = \rho_{\rm L} g H_{\rm m_{\rm B}}$$
(23)

The pressure drop at the bottom of the bed was measured by

$$P_{0} - P_{atm} = \rho_{L} g H_{in_{0}}$$
⁽²⁹⁾

The height of the bottom manometer may be rewritten as

$$H_{m_0} = H_{R} + H_{m_R} + \Delta h \tag{30}$$

Substituting Eq. (30) into Eqs. (24), (28), and (29), the pressure drop across the bed was found by

$$\Delta P = P_0 - P_B = \rho_L g(H_B + \Delta h)$$
(31)



Substituting this pressure drop into Eq. (26), the gas holdup is found by

$$\epsilon_{G} = \frac{H_{B} + Ah}{F_{B} - P_{L} - \epsilon_{S}P_{S} - P_{L} + \epsilon_{S}P_{L}}$$
(32)

and the liquid holdup was found by substituting for $\varepsilon_{\rm R}$ in Eq. (27).

8.2 Sample Calculations

Sample calculations are shown for Run 31 (ORNL Databook A-7217-G). The 3-in.-diam column was charged with 2270 gm of 4x8 mesh alumina having a density of 1.94 gm/cm³ and a 0.357-cm particle diameter. The bottom manumeter read 90.7 cm, and the top manometer 68.5 cm at static conditions. A static pressure correction factor of (90.7 - 68.5) or 22.2 cm was determined for the last manometer. At a superficial gas velocity of 13.24 cm/sec and a superficial liquid velocity of 2.98 cm/sec, a height of 84.0 cm was recorded in the bottom manometer and a height of 55.5 cm in the top manometer. Thus, the pressure drop due to flow is

$$\Delta h = 84.0 - (55.5 + 22.2) = 6.3 \text{ cm}$$

The bed height and bed pressure drop is determined by a plot of the Ah readings against the distance up the column. Figure 2 illustrates this procedure for a gas velocity of 13.24 cm/sec and a liquid velocity of 2.98 cm/sec in Run 31. A bed height of 46.0 cm and a pressure drop of 15.3 cm of water were calculated. The pressure drop across the bed was obtained for several liquid flow rates and plotted for Run 31 in Fig. 3. From this plot the minimum fluidization point for the bed in Run 31 is 1.82 cm/sec of water and 13.24 cm/sec of air.

The solid holdup for the fluidized bed in Run 31 at a gas velocity of 13.24 cm and liquid velocity of 2.98 cm was calculated

$$r_{S} = \frac{M}{\rho_{S}AH_{B}} = \frac{2270 \text{ gm}}{(1.94 \text{ gm/cm}^{3})[(\frac{3 \text{ fn.}}{2})(2.54 \frac{\text{cm}}{\text{in.}})]^{2}\pi(46 \text{ cm})}$$

= 0.557

The gas holdup was calculated,

$$\frac{(\frac{H_{B} + \Lambda h}{H_{B}})(\rho_{L}) + e_{S}\rho_{S} - \rho_{L} + e_{S}\rho_{L}}{\rho_{G} - \rho_{L}}$$
(32)
= $\frac{\frac{46+15.3 \text{ cm}}{46 \text{ cm}}(.995 \text{ gm}) - 0.557(1.942 \text{ gm}) - 0.995 \text{ gm} + (.557)(.995 \text{ gm}_{S})}{0.0012 - 0.995 \text{ gm/cm}^{3}}$
= 0.195

The liquid holdup was calculated,

$$e_1 = 1 - e_5 - e_6 = 1 - 0.557 - 0.195 = 0.248$$
 (27)

8.3 Location of Original Data

The original data are located in ORNL Databooks A-7217-G, pp. 17-100, and A-7215-G, pp. 13-23. The databooks and calculations are on file at the MIT School of Chemical Engineering Practice, Bldg. 3001, ORNL.

8.4 Nomenclature

a correlation constant

A cross sectional area, cm²

Ar_L Archimedes number, liquid phase, $D_p^3 o_L (o_S - o_L) g/\mu_L^2$

b correlation constant

c correlation constant

$$Ca_G$$
 capillary number, based on gas velocity, $U_{G^{2}L}/G_L$

d correlation constant

 D_c diameter of column, in.

 D_{D} diameter of packing, cm

e correlation constant

| Fri | . Froude number, based on phase i, ${\tt U}_1^2/{\tt g}{\tt D}_p$ |
|-----|---|
| Q | gravitational constant, cm/sec ² |
| H | height along column, cm |
| h | incremental manameter height, cm of HgO |

M wass of solids in bed, gm

P pressure, dyne/cm²

 Re_{L} . Reynolds number, liquid phase, $\mathrm{U}_{\mathrm{L}}\mathrm{D}_{\mathrm{p}}\mathrm{v}_{\mathrm{L}}/\mathrm{u}_{\mathrm{L}}$

R regression coefficient

U superficial velocity, cm/sec

U₁ terminal velocity, cm/sec

volume, cm³

Subscripts:

B bed

G gas phase

i ith phase

L liquid phase

m manometer

MF at minimum fluidization

o manometer at bottom of column

p particle

S solid phase

Greek Symbols:

e holdup (volume fraction)

 ρ density, gm/cm³

σ surface tension, dyne/cm

u viscosity, gm/cm-sec

8.5 Literature References

1. Burck, G.M., K. Kodama, R.G. Markeloff, and S.R. Wilson, "Cocurrent Three-Phase Fluidized Bed (Part 2)," ORNL-MIT-213 (May 1975).

2. Dakshinamurty, P., V. Subrahmanyam, and J. Rao, "Bed Porosities in Gas-Liquid Fluidization," <u>IAEC Proc. Des. Dev., 19</u>, 322 (1971).

3. Efremov, G.I., and I.A. Vakhrushev, "A Study of the Hydrodynamics of Three-Phase Fluidized Beds," Intern. Chem. Eng., 10(1), 37 (1970).

4. Ferguson, D.E., ed., "Chemical Technology Division Annual Progress Report for the Period Ending March 31, 1974," ORNL-4966.

5. Kim, S.D., L.G.J. Baker, and M.A. Bergougnou. "Holdup and Axial Mixing Characteristics of Two and Three Phase Fluidized Beds," <u>Can. J. Chem.</u> Eng., <u>50</u>, 695 (1972).

6. Kim, S.D., C.G.J. Baker, and M.A. Bergouynou, "Phase Holdup Characteristics of Three Phase Fluidized Beds," <u>Can. J. Chem. Eng.</u>, <u>53</u>, 134 (1975).

7. Østergaard, K., and M.L. Michelsen, "Holdup and Axial Dispersion in Gas-Liquid Fluidized Beds," Preprint 31D, Symposium on Fundamental and Applied Fluidization, Tampa, May 1968.

8. Wen, C.Y., and Y.H. Yu, "Mechanics of Fluidization," <u>Chem. Eng.</u> <u>Progr. Symposium Ser.</u>, 62, 100 (1966). ŧ

if the item you receive NTIS strives to provide quality products, reliable service, and fast delivery filling your order. Please contact us for a replacement within 30 days if we have made an error in defective or ()

E-mail: info@ntis.gov Phone: 1-888-584-8332 or (703)605-6050

Reproduced by NTIS

National Technical Information Service Springfield, VA 22161

This report was printed specifically for your order from nearly 3 million titles available in our collection.

For economy and efficiency, NTIS does not maintain stock of its vast collection of technical reports. Rather, most documents are custom reproduced for each order. Documents that are not in electronic format are reproduced from master archival copies and are the best possible reproductions available.

Occasionally, older master materials may reproduce portions of documents that are not fully legible. If you have questions concerning this document or any order you have placed with NTIS, please call our Customer Service Department at (703) 605-6050.

About NTIS

NTIS collects scientific, technical, engineering, and related business information – then organizes, maintains, and disseminates that information in a variety of formats – including electronic download, online access, CD-ROM, magnetic tape, diskette, multimedia, microfiche and paper.

The NTIS collection of nearly 3 million titles includes reports describing research conducted or sponsored by federal agencies and their contractors; statistical and business information; U.S. military publications; multimedia training products; computer software and electronic databases developed by federal agencies; and technical reports prepared by research organizations worldwide.

For more information about NTIS, visit our Web site at <u>http://www.ntis.gov</u>.



Ensuring Permanent, Easy Access to U.S. Government Information Assets